Questions and Answers
DC Fast Chargers for California’s North-South Corridors
GFO-15-601


These answers are based on the Energy Commission’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding, by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The Energy Commission cannot give advice as to whether or not your particular project is eligible for funding, because all proposal details are not known.

Administrative

Q.1	Will the workshop presentation be available and distributed to the attendees?

A.1	The presentation slides for GFO-15-601 Pre-Application Workshop are posted on the Energy Commission’s website at: http://energy.ca.gov/contracts/transportation.html.

Q.2	Will there be any other workshops? Will we have any other opportunities to ask questions?

A.2	There will not be any other workshops associated with GFO-15-601.  Addendum #4 allows a second round of questions that must be received by the Energy Commission no later than September 18, 2015.

Q.3	How are the grant funds from the Energy Commission paid out?

A.3	The Energy Commission reimburses allowable expenditures in arrears (i.e., after the recipient has incurred the expenditure obligation). Grant recipient must invoice the Energy Commission and adequately document the expenditures. Once a valid invoice has been received, payment may take up to 45 days to be issued (although the Energy Commission strives to accelerate invoice processing to the greatest extent possible).

Q.4	Does the 10% retention release request need to also be submitted 60 days prior to completion of project?

A.4	No. The retention release is submitted once the project is complete. The project is complete when all work, including but not limited to: construction, installation, data collection, final report, and invoicing are complete. The Final Report for the project is due no less than 60 days before the end term of the agreement. Once the project is complete, the Recipient must submit a retention release request. The Commission Agreement Manager will review the project file and, when satisfied that the terms of the funding Agreement have been fulfilled, will authorize payment of the retention.

Application

Q.5	Is it preferable to propose meeting the exact specifications of the solicitation with just two DCFC ports per site at a lower cost or to install more DCFC charging ports per site at a higher cost?

A.5	All proposed projects must meet the minimum technical requirements of the solicitation. The applicant should consider the scoring evaluation criteria, the possible number of points for each criterion, and the bonus points within the solicitation to determine the best approach. With everything else being equal, a project proposing to install a greater number of DCFCs along a selected corridor may score higher in accordance with the scoring criteria. Specifically, projects exceeding the preferred number of sites identified may achieve higher scores in cost-effectiveness, expected project benefits, and facilitation of driver charging sessions. Since the preferred number of sites is evaluated in combination with the minimum distance recommendation from existing and planned sites, there is no de facto maximum number of sites and the applicant may propose additional sites to maximize their ability to achieve higher scores under this solicitation.

Q.6	Is a wet signature required?

A.6	No.

Q.7	Is there a page limit for the project narrative?

A.7	No. Applicants are encouraged to provide all of the information required in the solicitation while being as concise as possible. Applicants should provide a level of detail sufficient for the scoring team to understand the proposed project and adequately evaluate the project against all screening and scoring criteria in the solicitation.

Q.8	Site design is a fundable activity. What degree of detail for each site do you want to see in the narrative?

A.8	Applicants must determine the appropriate level of detail necessary and available to provide the scoring team sufficient information to evaluate the application against the published scoring criteria. With everything else being equal, projects demonstrating specifics on site design for each site may score higher in terms of project readiness and project implementation in accordance with the scoring criteria. Please keep in mind that costs incurred prior to agreement execution are not reimbursable using Energy Commission funds. 

Q.9	What level of documentation do you need to see from regional councils to prove we have conferred with them?

A.9	Acceptable documentation may include, but is not limited to: meeting minutes, e-mails, or letters from the regional council(s). Documentation should include: 1) name and contact number; 2) date contacted; and 3) a summary of discussions on DC fast charger station siting relevant to the Region’s infrastructure siting plans. If the proposed charging site falls outside a county covered by an existing PEV readiness plan, please coordinate with a regional plan in an adjacent county.

Budget

Q.10	It seems like the majority of the Energy Commission funds are for installation and planning costs. Is everything else up to the recipient?

A.10	Section II.B, “Project Requirements,” including subsection 13, “Eligible Costs”, describes the types of costs that are not eligible for reimbursement under an agreement resulting from this solicitation. Additional restrictions on eligible costs may be found within Attachment 9, “ARFVTP Terms and Conditions,” and the applicable federal cost principals incorporated by reference. All other expenditures that are necessary, reasonable, documentable, and allocable to the proposed project are eligible for reimbursement. Please keep in mind that costs incurred prior to agreement execution are not reimbursable using Energy Commission funds.

Q.11	The budget forms require budget details for any subcontractor that exceeds 25% of the Energy Commission award or $100,000, whichever is less. If a subcontractor is awarded a fixed cost contract over that amount and has a normal business practice of only entering into fixed cost contracts, must they still provide the specific budget details contained in the form?

A.11	Yes. Any subcontractor receiving $100,000 or more or 25% or more of the total Energy Commission funds awarded (whichever is less) must provide a separate set of budget forms documenting the details of the expected expenditures under the subcontract.

Q.12	Is a contingency budget line item an acceptable budget item?

A.12	No.

Q.13	Should the applicant’s budget reflect the total agreement budget while subcontractor budgets reflect their subcontracted amount?

A.13	Yes.

Q.14	Who will be paying the electric bill for these DC fast chargers?

A.14	The Energy Commission will not reimburse for the cost of electricity under this solicitation.  Applicants will be required to address the cost and payment for electricity with the site host. Please refer to Section II.B, subsection 13, “Eligible Costs”.

Q.15	For sites that would benefit from or require a new utility service for the charging station, are sub-metering or new meter equipment installation costs reimbursable by this grant?

A.15	Yes. Please refer to Section II.B, subsection 13, “Eligible Costs”.

Subcontractors

Q.16	Can vendors or subcontractors participate in multiple bids within a corridor and in multiple corridors as long as they are not the lead entity?

A.16	Yes.

Q.17	If site needs significant work to be performed by a utility (e.g., PG&E or SMUD), are they considered subcontractors or vendors?  Some of the information you require may not be possible to obtain.

A.17	If services are provided by a third-party, they must be listed as subcontractors and budgeted accordingly. Expenditures that are neither reimbursed nor counted as match share do not need to be included in a proposed budget, but the work should be described and documented in the project narrative and proposed scope of work.

Vendors providing only goods, supplies or equipment should be identified using the “Equipment” or “Materials & Miscellaneous” sheets within the applicant’s budget, as appropriate.

Third-parties providing services (e.g., labor) in addition to goods, materials or equipment are considered subcontractors and must be budgeted accordingly.

If budget details are not known at the time of application, the applicant should provide the best estimate for the work that will be completed or state this information is “to be determined” (TBD) on the budget forms. However, incomplete details on budget forms may result in a lower score in accordance with the scoring criteria. If an applicant is recommended for funding, full budget details will be required prior to finalizing and approving the funding agreement between the applicant and Energy Commission.

Q.18	Must all subcontractors be lined up prior to application?  Can identified subcontractors be changed during the course of the agreement?

A.18	Subcontractors do not have to be “lined up” prior to submission of the application and may be listed as TBD or “to be determined.” Changes to subcontractors may be allowable subject to the review and approval of the Energy Commission.

Q.19	Should a legal team be considered a “subcontractor?”

A.19	Individuals providing services under an agreement specifically for this project and who are not employees of the applicant should be identified and budgeted as a subcontractor.

Q.20	The terms and conditions state that all subcontracts must be submitted to the Commission Agreement Manager prior to execution. What if the contract is executed prior to award?

A.20	Typically, the recipient submits a copy of a subcontract to the Commission Agreement Manager before it is executed. This activity usually occurs after the grant agreement is executed between the Energy Commission and the prime recipient. However, if a subcontract was executed prior to award, the recipient should provide a copy of that subcontract immediately upon execution of the grant agreement. Please keep in mind that costs incurred prior to agreement execution are not reimbursable using Energy Commission funds.

Equipment

Q.21	The solicitation states that "Host sites should have 480V 3-phase power available and adequate transformer capacity to serve the DC Fast Charger(s).” Are 240V AC single phase and 208V AC 3 Phase DCFC charging equipment installations allowable under this solicitation?

A.21	No minimum power requirement is stated in the solicitation. There should be adequate power to serve the proposed DC fast chargers. Applicants may propose projects that utilize 240V AC single phase, 208V AC 3-phase, or solar power if appropriate. The proposed technical specifications will be evaluated and scored against the published evaluation criteria.

Q.22	Are there power requirements for the J1772 level 2 chargers? I believe higher voltage level 2 chargers have better value for this solicitation.

A.22	There are no power requirements for the level 2 chargers funded under this solicitation. The applicant should submit a proposal which takes into consideration equipment that will perform optimally with the proposed DC fast chargers. The proposed technical specifications will be evaluated and scored against the published evaluation criteria.

Q.23	The solicitation states "The site must include an expansion stub out to accommodate at least one future 100 kW or greater DC fast charger.”  Many of the sites that are being considered do not currently have the power capability for a single 100 kW drop, but could have aggregated 100 kW drops for multiple chargers.  Is this acceptable?

A.23	Addendum #4 to the solicitation changes the expansion stub out requirement. Each site must include at least one stub out. Each stub out must at a minimum: 1) include a 2-inch minimum spare conduit run with pull-rope sized, installed, and located per the National Electrical Code for future installation of wiring supporting up to a 480V AC, 4-wire, 125 kW load; and 2) be capped off.

Q.24	Why is there only a requirement for one Level 2 charger and not more?

A.24	The solicitation has been revised in Addendum #4 to require “at least” one J1772-compliant Level 2 charger. Applications proposing multiple Level 2 chargers must ensure these chargers do not adversely impact use of the DC fast charger. With everything else being equal, proposals installing multiple Level 2 chargers may receive a higher score than they would if they only installed the minimum number of chargers required, in accordance with the evaluation criteria for Project Equipment and Project Implementation.

Q.25	Why does the solicitation allow an applicant to deploy a dual DC fast charger station which can charge one vehicle at a time instead of requiring the applicant to deploy two stand-alone DC fast chargers which can charge two vehicles at a time?

A.25	The solicitation provides flexibility in the technical requirements to allow applicants to propose projects that maximize the benefits of the funding based on the unique site location requirements. Some sites may restrict the number of parking spaces it is willing to provide for the DC fast chargers. With everything else being equal, projects with the capability to charge two vehicles simultaneously may receive a higher score than a project that can only charge one vehicle at a time.

Q.26	Can applicants propose dual standard chargers that have replaceable cord sets with the ability to convert if one fast charging standard such as CHAdeMO or Combo ends up prevailing in the market?

A.26	Yes. However, applications must meet the minimum requirements of the solicitation. The applicant is allowed to propose chargers with this functionality.

Q.27	Can you please clarify the “disposition of equipment” requirements?

A.27	Equipment is defined as having a useful life of at least one year and having an acquisition unit cost of at least $5,000. Attachment 9, “ARFVTP Terms and Conditions,” specifies that title to equipment purchased by the Recipient with grant funds shall vest in the Recipient. At the end of the agreement, the Energy Commission and recipient must agree on the disposition of the equipment purchased in whole or in part with Energy Commission funds. In general, the Energy Commission will allow funding recipients to continue to utilize the equipment if used for the same purposes of the funding agreement. Since this solicitation seeks to fund publicly-available chargers in selected interregional corridors, the Energy Commission expects that the chargers funded under the resulting agreements will continue to provide public charging beyond the funding agreement end date. At the end of the Agreement term, or if at any time the equipment is no longer used for these purposes, recipients are required to contact the Energy Commission for future disposition instructions.

Q.28	Is the grant recipient the charging station owner? Can ownership of the charging station change after the EVCS installation?

A.28	Attachment 9, “ARFVTP Terms and Conditions,” specifies that title to equipment purchased by the Recipient with grant funds shall vest in the Recipient. Recipients should contact their assigned Commission Agreement Manager prior to changing ownership of the charging station to determine whether there are any equipment disposition issues. 


Eligible Projects

Q.29	The solicitation requires proposed projects to be in one of the eligible corridors (I-5, Hwy 99, and US 101). In addition, host sites must be within three miles of the identified corridor. We have a potential charging station site located off of Highway 50, roughly 12 miles from SR 99 at the Hwy 50 interchange. Is this site eligible under the solicitation? Will there be future funding for charging stations off of Hwy 50 east of Hwy 99?

A.29	It is the Applicants’ responsibility to determine project eligibility based on the solicitation requirements. The Energy Commission cannot give advice as to whether or not your particular project is eligible for funding, because all proposal details are not known.
Based on the information provided, a site located 12 miles from State Route 99 at the Highway 50 interchange appears ineligible for funding under GFO-15-601 unless the applicant demonstrates that no alternative site is available that can meet the solicitation requirements, which appears unlikely based on the probability of finding a suitable site given the large number of businesses in close proximity to the freeway. At this time, the Energy Commission cannot state whether a future funding solicitation will cover this project.

Q.30	This solicitation seeks to fund several parallel north-south segments across the state (I-5, Highway 99, and US-101). Can Highway 1 (SR-1) be added as an eligible corridor?

A.30	No. The purpose of this solicitation is to fund chargers within the identified corridors.

Q.31	Can you provide better clarification on where preferred sites should be? Some corridors state North of or South of. Which corridor should install in connecting towns?

A.31	“North of” or “South of” means the connecting town is not included in the corridor. 

Q.32	Is there any language for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) access requirements at the charging station sites?

A.32	The Terms and Conditions (Section 2(f)) state that any federal, state, or local laws or regulations applicable to the project are incorporated by reference into agreements. This includes the ADA, if applicable to the project. The solicitation references pending regulations proposed by the California Building Standards Commission on behalf of the Division of the State Architect, which pertain in part to accessibility amendments to California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 2, for disability access to electric vehicle charging stations. (See http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Programs/progAccess/access2016.aspx.) Grant recipients must comply with the new regulations when effective.    In addition, until the new regulations are effective, applicants must comply with the requirements in Attachment 10 to the solicitation, “Accessibility Requirements for Plug-In Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure.” If the enacted regulation does not apply to certain charging stations, then those charging stations must continue to comply with the requirements of Attachment 10. See Addendum 4, p. 16, “Accessibility Requirements.” As stated in the terms and conditions, if the proposed project is subject to additional federal, state or local requirements (including, but not limited to, ADA), the applicant is responsible for ensuring all accessibility requirements are adequately addressed.

Q.33	Regarding the existing sites, some are CHAdeMO connections only. Do you consider that overlap?

A.33	No. This solicitation has a primary and secondary corridor designation that enables at least the primary corridors from Oregon to Mexico and San Jose to Buellton to be robust with both CHAdeMO and SAE Combo standard DC fast chargers and then allows for a less robust secondary corridor with a CHAdeMO DC fast charger (but with the encouragement for SAE Combo DC fast charger stations as well). Existing and planned CHAdeMO-only stations were not used to evaluate requirements for primary corridor installations since the intent is for primary corridor sites with both CHAdeMO and SAE CCS connection protocols. Please see Section II.B for Category A and B definition. This is one way to maximize Energy Commission funds in this solicitation while enabling additional north-south corridors.

Q.34	Why is SAE Combo only a preferred option and not a requirement for the Secondary Corridor?

A.34	The intent of the secondary corridor is to fill in EV travel gaps by installing DC fast chargers along portions of I-5, SR-99, and SR-101 where no fast chargers exist or where the chargers are located too far apart for the average EV driver, and to optimize the number of installations with the available funds. The primary corridors require both CHAdeMO and the SAE CCS standard. While the secondary corridor only requires the CHAdeMO standard, the Energy Commission encourages the installation of both standards where feasible. 

Site Locations

Q.35	Can the Energy Commission establish a quick and simple process to change site locations if necessary after agreement execution?

A.35	The Energy Commission strongly recommends the applicant do as much as possible to propose sites that will not change over the course of the project. Site change requests must remain consistent with solicitation requirements and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis, and at the sole discretion of the Energy Commission. All site changes are subject to CEQA review by both the local agency and the Energy Commission; require the Energy Commission to evaluate the site change(s); and possibly prepare and publish a revised Localized Health Impact report a minimum of 30-days prior to approval. Requests for site changes can take three months or more to fully process. Recipients are encouraged to contact their assigned Commission Agreement Manager immediately if site changes are needed.
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Q.36	What are the geographical limitations for sites on each corridor?

A.36	Please refer to Section II.B, Tables 4 and 6 in the solicitation. Each Corridor is defined with regard to name of highway corridor and location in proximity to cities. For example, the I-5 Corridor from the Oregon Border to Red Bluff includes the geographic area from the Oregon Border along I-5 to (and including) the City of Red Bluff.

Q.37	Why are there a minimum distance and a maximum distance?

A.37	Please see Section II.B Project Requirements. In order to ensure an effective DC fast charging network, recommended minimum distances between existing stations and planned stations that meet the solicitation’s minimum requirements are specified. There are no maximum distances stated in the solicitation between stations. Proposed projects must allow EV drivers with light duty electric vehicles with a 75 mile all-electric range to successfully drive the entire length of the selected ECHC corridor taking into account highway speed limits, topography, local average temperatures, and other factors that may impact electric vehicle range without danger of being stranded.

Q.38	Can location desirability (say 500 ft. off corridor highway) offset some provisions as 100 kW stub out or within 11 miles of another station?

A. 38	No. The location desirability does not offset any other requirements in the solicitation.

Q.39	Some grant recipients may propose very low powered chargers in order to save money. Should the solicitation have a minimum amp requirement for the charging stations?

A.39	Because of the range of utility service available to potential host sites over the broad distance identified in this solicitation, the applicant is required to propose the best charging options for each site that meet the minimum requirements of the solicitation. Proposals exceeding the minimum requirements of the solicitation may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Q.40	We understand that some of the Nissan Dealership DC Fast Chargers are not available 24 hours a day, so how are these accounted for in the “existing stations” Table 1?

A.40	Table 1 in the solicitation provides a list of all existing DC fast chargers, including DC fast chargers located at Nissan dealerships, that are in close proximity to I-5, SR-99 and US 101 as of July 2015. If any site on the list does not meet the minimum category requirements under Section II.B, “Project Requirements” for that corridor, they will not be counted when evaluating the minimum distance recommendation for a proposed site. The applicant should check the availability of all DC fast chargers in their corridor to ensure their proposal for the selected DC fast charger corridor segment meets the requirements of the solicitation in light of existing and planned chargers (including updated station information).

Q.41	Can you describe the intent behind breaking up the corridors in an “adopt-a-corridor” approach? What if an applicant wanted to take on the entire corridor?

A.41	The Applicant may apply to complete an entire corridor. However, each corridor section requires a separate application. Based on experience with previous awards, dividing the corridors into discrete segments minimizes the project risk to both the applicant and the Energy Commission.

Q.42	Why does the solicitation end at Oceanside (I-5) and at Buellton (US-101)?

Q.42	There is DC fast charging infrastructure, either in existence or planned, beyond the end points listed in the solicitation.

Q.43	Are the planned and existing sites part of the WCEH and will they all adhere to WCEH requirements?

A.43	No. Stations funded by this solicitation will serve the purpose of filling corridor gaps to enable EV travel from Oregon to Mexico. WCEH licensing is not required by this GFO; however, applicants must conduct a good faith effort to execute a non-exclusive trademark license agreement with the Washington State Department of Transportation to brand the installations as part of the West Coast Electric Highway. See Application Manual Section II.B.1. See also Footnote 1 at p. 4 of the Application Manual.

Q.44	Does the solicitation require a signed lease deal or access rights agreement at the time of proposal submission? Is a memorandum of understanding more usual, and acceptable?

A.44	No. The solicitation does not require a signed lease or access rights agreement at the time of proposal submission. Applicants must document the extent to which the project site location(s) is secured. Scoring criterion 5, “Project Readiness”, evaluates, in part, the degree to which site control or access rights to the proposed site(s) are secured. Documentation to demonstrate site control could take the form of a memorandum of understanding or letters of support. With everything else being equal, proposals further documenting that site control has been secured will score higher in accordance with evaluation criteria.

Q.45	Was the intent behind funding the “I-5: South of Sacramento to north of Wheeler Ridge” as CHAdeMO only because the corridor already had planned chargers that were only CHAdeMO stations?

A.45	Yes. In addition, the CHAdeMO-only requirement in the secondary corridor reflects the best use of available funds to achieve the goals of this solicitation. Even though only CHAdeMO is required in secondary corridors, applicants are encouraged to include SAE Combo standard if feasible. With everything else being equal, proposals including both charging standard protocols will score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Q.46	On the “I-5: Wheeler Ridge to Santa Clarita” section of the corridor, why do you want to have 2 different locations clustered so close (in terms of actual distance between stations)? Why not just have one location with multiple chargers?

A.46	The topography of the area and availability of potential sites were taken into account. Given the grade of the road, an average EV driver may not be able to reach one location with multiple chargers.

Q.47	Are host sites going to be contacted on multiple fronts by applicants?

A.47	Potentially, yes. Applicants working with site hosts should clearly communicate the purpose of the solicitation and that funding for the proposed project is not guaranteed and contingent upon the results of the Energy Commission funding competition under this solicitation.

Q.48	Can you distinguish/define the following terms utilized in the solicitation: site, location, stations? 

A.48	As used in GFO-15-601, “site” provides an address for CEQA and coordinates for mapping that would be used to locate the charging equipment and associated parking area. “Location” does not define boundaries, but includes the general area of the charging equipment. “Station” includes the charging equipment and the area where the EV driver parks to access the charging equipment.

Q.49	On page 24, the solicitation requires applicants to identify the entity(ies) that will own and operate the proposed charging sites. Is this the station or the site?

A.49	The solicitation requires applicants to identify the entity(ies) that will own and operate the proposed charging stations.

Q.50	Why are there the same number of preferred additional sites for ECHC Corridors #1 and #5 when there are more miles in #5?

A.50	The number of preferred stations is based on the number of existing or planned stations and the minimum number of additional station installations necessary to provide a travel distance between chargers that is not likely to strand the average EV driver.

Q.51	Table 6 on page 15 of the solicitation identifies the minimum distance between sites. What if an existing site is unreliable and does not meet the specifications of this WCEH corridor (24/7 accessibility), ease of entry, faulty equipment, etc.? Can this requirement be relaxed to allow applicants the ability to install a charger that fits seamlessly into the rest of the corridor, is reliable, and can accommodate future requirements for charging.

A.51	Addendum #4 clarifies that the minimum distance between sites is a recommendation and not a requirement. Applicants may propose additional sites to increase the reliability and robustness of the ECHC corridor. If an existing site does not meet the minimum category requirements for that corridor, the applicant may choose not to count that site when determining the minimum distance for a proposed site. Proposed sites must meet all solicitation requirements including allowing a light duty EV with a 75-mile all electric range to comfortably travel along the entire corridor without being stranded, and adhering to the funding cap of the ECHC corridor.

Permitting/California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

Q.52	Under “Project Readiness” (page 24), the solicitation requires applicants to: provide a comprehensive list of permits required for the project; identify which permits have been obtained; and explain the process to obtain the permits not yet obtained along with anticipated timelines to obtain the permits. How will anyone have permits lined up in 2½ months for this many sites?

A.52	Permits are not required at the time of application. Permits not yet obtained require an explanation of the process to obtain the permits along with anticipated timelines to do so (see Application Manual Section III.E.2.e.3). However, with everything else being equal, proposed projects that have progressed further in obtaining required permits may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Q.53	On page 27, the solicitation states the applicant MUST provide documentation with the local agency with jurisdiction over the proposed project for purposes of complying with CEQA. Is failure to provide this documentation grounds for disqualification?

A.53	No. However, with everything else being equal, proposed projects that have progressed further in obtaining CEQA approval may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria. See Section III.E.8, III. E.2.e.4, and the Attachment 7, the CEQA Compliance Form.

Q.54	Do applicants need to receive CEQA compliance for each site or the entire project?

A.54	Ultimately, applicants must comply with CEQA for each proposed site, including but not limited to undergoing a local agency’s CEQA review. In addition, the Energy Commission conducts its own, independent CEQA review. 

Q.55	On the CEQA worksheet, do Recipients have to include actual site addresses? What if over the course of the project the site changes to alternate site? Is there any way to obtain a categorical exemption for all sites if commercial property exists where the install will take place?

A.55	Yes, actual site addresses for all sites must be included. If, after the agreement has been funded, site changes occur, the Energy Commission in its sole discretion will consider those site relocation requests on a case-by-case basis. However, CEQA compliance for the new sites will need to be obtained. Applicants must work with their local agency, and the Energy Commission, to attain CEQA compliance. Whether or not a particular categorical exemption applies to a specific project is a highly fact-specific decision that will be made by the lead and responsible agencies. See also A. 35. 

Q.56	On the CEQA worksheet (#6), the worksheet says, “Has the public agency prepared environmental documents (e.g., Notice of Exemption, Initial Study/Negative Declaration/Mitigated Negative Declaration, Environmental Impact Report, Notice of Determination) under CEQA for the proposed project?” Will the Energy Commission obtain exemption for this project?

A.56	The applicant is responsible for obtaining CEQA compliance from a local agency. The Energy Commission conducts its own, independent CEQA review. 

Q.57	How long does CEQA application review take? 

A.57	CEQA compliance does not have to be obtained at the time of application, but must be obtained prior to Energy Commission approval of awards recommended for funding. The timeframe for CEQA application review may vary significantly based on the project, location, and local agency timeframes. Applicants are required to obtain CEQA compliance for the proposed project. If CEQA is not obtained at the time of application, applicants must describe the process to obtain CEQA compliance and the expected timeframes to complete. With everything else being equal, proposed projects that have progressed further in obtaining CEQA approval may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria. As a very rough guide, if a categorical exemption is applicable to a particular project, a local agency’s review may take several months. If an initial study is necessary, review could take 6 months or more. The timeline associated with your proposed project may differ from these examples.

Operations and Maintenance

Q.58	Only limited maintenance contracts are covered; is it possible to include operations and other maintenance?

A.58	No. The Applicant is responsible for all operating costs. However, the applicant may be reimbursed for maintenance of the equipment during the term of the agreement if those maintenance costs meet the solicitation requirements. In addition, the Applicant may be reimbursed for a maintenance agreement of up to 5 years. Please refer to Section II.B, subsection 8, “Operation and Maintenance”.

Q.59	Should the 5-year maintenance plan start when all chargers are operational or as each charger becomes operational?

A.59	The applicant may specify the start date of the maintenance plan to maximize the benefits of the plan. Energy Commission funds may be used for up to 5 years of maintenance for each station. Maintenance plans must commence on or after charging stations are operational. All costs reimbursed under a funding agreement (including maintenance plan costs) must be incurred and paid during the approved term of the agreement.

Q.60	Please define the minimum required operational term of the chargers that would meet the requirement for 95% uptime. How does the Energy Commission expect to measure and enforce the requirement for 95% “uptime” on the DC Fast Charger?

A.60	Reliability of the DC fast chargers is extremely important to EV drivers who rely on these sites to refuel in order to continue travel on the highway corridor. Addendum #4 requires the applicant to provide a plan to ensure 95% “uptime”. “Uptime” will be calculated based on an operational period of 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. The applicant will be required to address issues such as vandalism and other major factors that can lead to downtime in the plan. In accordance with the scoring criteria, the applicant will be evaluated on their plan’s comprehensiveness and degree to which the plan demonstrates the ability to minimize charger downtime and ensure ongoing operations. The Energy Commission will not be enforcing the requirement for 95% uptime.

Q.61	The maintenance plan can cover maintenance costs for up to 5 years after the chargers become operational. However, this maintenance plan may extend beyond the agreement end term date. Must the cost of the maintenance plan be invoiced prior to March 31, 2020? How?

A.61	Yes. All reimbursed costs must be incurred and paid during the approved term of the agreement and the maximum term of the agreement is March 31, 2020. Maintenance plans extending beyond this date may be pre-paid or should be covered by the funding recipient with their own funds.

Q.62	Are maintenance Service Level Agreements (SLA) on response eligible for funding? 

A.62	Yes. 

Q.63	Will the grant cover extended warranty coverage?

A.63	Yes. The recipient may use grant funds to purchase a time extension on the standard warranty associated with the charging equipment. As an example, a standard warranty may cover defective equipment for a period of time after purchase. Extending the time of the warranty may be used to augment a maintenance agreement. 

Q.64	We are considering a network model where operation and maintenance (O&M) costs are shared across a broader network, rather than being handled on a per-station basis. For example, this model would allow heavy use stations to subsidize an underutilized station that rarely requires maintenance but bears a share of the total network cost. Would this cost sharing model be acceptable and not interpreted as “additional fees” under Project Requirements, #9 Payment Options, on page 16?

A.64	Yes, this would be acceptable. 

Q.65	Are there any formal service level agreements for Tier 1 and Tier 2 support for the DCFC that will contribute to the 95% up-time requirement for scoring purposes?

A.65	It is the responsibility of the applicant to propose the appropriate service level agreement to meet the requirements of the solicitation and maximize the expected benefits of the proposed project.

Bonus Points

Q.66	Are there bonus points for proposing multiple chargers at a site?

A.66	There are no bonus points for proposing multiple chargers at a site, but the project may receive a higher score based on Scoring Criteria #2. The “Project Equipment” scoring criterion specifies, among other criteria, that applications will be evaluated on the degree to which “the proposed project includes multiple charging stations at the installation sites.”

Q.67	The Bonus points are based on a set percentage. Can you clarify this more? Will you round Up? Down? How is the percentage determined?

A.67	Addendum #4 clarifies how the bonus points will be assessed in accordance with the following table:

	# of Preferred Sites
	100% or more
	More than 70%
	More than 50%

	8 Sites
	8 or more
	6 or 7
	5

	5 Sites
	5 or more
	4
	3

	4 Sites
	4 or more
	3
	N/A

	1 Site
	1 or more
	N/A
	N/A

	Bonus Points
	10 Points
	7 Points
	5 Points



Q.68	Can there be another level of bonus points for exceeding the preferred number of charging stations per location and allowing drivers to use the chargers for free for X amount of years?

A.68	No. Scoring Criteria #2, “Project Equipment,” specifies, among other criteria, that applications will be evaluated on the degree to which “the proposed project includes multiple charging stations at the installation sites.”

Q.69	Can additional credit / points / consideration be given in the grant proposal for battery backup / buffering / uninterrupted power for both dependability and utility demand fee mitigation? I recommend a future grant (RFP) for batteries for these sites in this proposal.

A.69	Battery storage is used as an example under Section III.E.2.h, Innovation and Sustainability. Scoring Criteria #8, “Innovation and Sustainability,” specifies, among other criteria, that applications will be evaluated on the degree to which “the proposed project reduces utility demand charges and offsets on-peak electricity usage or mitigates other adverse grid impacts.” These include, but are not limited to, battery storage, use of photovoltaics, and energy management systems.

Agreement Term/ Project Schedule

Q.70	The goal completion of 2020 is aggressive; are you able to extend it beyond this date?

A.70	No. The March 31, 2020 deadline ensures that the Energy Commission can reimburse costs for work under the agreement before the funds expire. If at all possible, Applicants are encouraged to complete the project well ahead of the March 31, 2020 deadline. With everything else being equal, projects demonstrating the ability to complete earlier will score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria. Funds may not be available after the stated deadline.

Q.71	When does the “project” start?

A.71	All costs reimbursed  by the Energy Commission must be incurred after execution of the funding agreement by both parties. However, a funding recipient may incur match share expenditures once notified as a recommended funding recipient through the publication of the Notice of Proposed Awards. Recipients electing to incur match share expenses prior to the full execution of the agreement do so at their own risk. The Energy Commission is not liable for those costs if a funding agreement is not executed for any reason.

Q.72	On page 25, the solicitation states, “Describe the proposed business model(s), if any, for the first five (5) years of operation including partnerships, sponsorships, advertising, or other revenue-generation and/or cost-mitigation.” Is this 5 year term the required project term?

A.72	No. The “first five (5) years of operation” is used in the scoring criteria to allow the scorers to evaluate all proposals over a defined and equal period of time. While the solicitation does not specify a minimum required duration for charger operation, applications will be evaluated on the ability and commitment to operate the chargers beyond the term of the Energy Commission’s funding agreement. With everything else being equal, Applicants documenting a credible plan and committing to operate the chargers for a longer period of time will score higher in accordance with the scoring criteria.

Q.73	On page 33, the solicitation states, “The applicant demonstrates a viable and credible plan to continue operating the proposed project beyond the term of the Energy Commission’s funding agreement.” What is minimum required duration for charger operation?

A.73	GFO-15-601 does not have a minimum required duration for charger operation. However, the Energy Commission expects chargers funded under this solicitation will operate well beyond the term of the Energy Commission’s agreement. With everything else being equal, Applicants documenting a credible plan and committing to operate the chargers for a longer period of time will score higher in accordance with the scoring criteria.

Q.74	Can you please distinguish between/define the project term vs. agreement term?

A.74	“Project Term” and “Agreement Term” are synonymous and refer to the period of performance under the resulting Energy Commission agreement. This term cannot exceed March 31, 2020 and all work under the agreement must be complete by the Agreement end term date (including construction, data collection and submission of the final report). In addition, all expenditures (both reimbursable and match share expenditures) must be incurred on or before the Agreement end term date.

Data Collection

Q.75	What data requirements can be made in this solicitation? Does the Energy Commission want consumer charging behavior data on these stations?

A.75	In accordance with the final task in the Scope of Work, the solicitation requires 6 months of throughput, usage, and operations data from the project, including but not limited to number of charging events for each charger over a defined period of time, amount of electricity used per charging event, type of users, charging availability, and charging demand (see the last Task listed in Attachment 2 Scope of Work for more detail). Applicants willing and able to commit to providing data beyond minimum solicitation requirements should provide a detailed description of this commitment within the proposal. 

Q.76	Are there usage-reporting requirements? If so, does that go for the duration of the project?

A.76	The final task for data collection in the Scope of Work will include usage-reporting requirements (see the last Task listed in Attachment 2 Scope of Work for more detail). The minimum 6-months of data collection must be complete and results included in the project final report prior to the Agreement end term date (which cannot exceed March 31, 2020).

Point of Sale Payment Options

Q.77	For payment systems, the solicitation requires the ability to accept credit/debit cards or membership programs.  Are both required?

A.77	The solicitation requires chargers to have the ability to accept credit or debit cards without incurring any additional fees, inconvenience or delays versus other payment or access control methods. Membership program payment is optional, but applicants are encouraged to maximize the ability of the chargers to accept multiple point-of-sale methods to minimize inconvenience to drivers. With everything else being equal, projects proposing more point-of-sale options may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.


Q.78	To accept credit/debit cards and to be an open system, does the card have to be swiped at the charger?

A.78	No. The card does not have to be swiped at the charger. The applicant may propose an alternative method of payment such as pay by phone, smart phone applications, subscription service or other methods, as long as the charger accepts more than one form of payment. Applicants are encouraged to maximize the ability of the chargers to accept multiple point-of-sale methods to minimize inconvenience to drivers. With everything else being equal, projects proposing more point-of-sale options may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Both open or membership programs are allowable, but the system must have an open communication protocol standard. The EV charging station must use an open communication protocol standard as a basic framework for purposes of network interoperability. Any proprietary protocol may additionally be superimposed on the system, provided the site owner is able to revert to the open communication protocol standard.

Q.79	If a phone (Smartphone or other) is required for payment, what if customer needs a charge or lost his phone?

A.79	Applicants are encouraged to maximize the ability of the chargers to accept multiple point-of-sale methods to minimize inconvenience to drivers. With everything else being equal, projects proposing more point-of-sale options may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Q.80	Is the call center required to have the capability to accept credit card payments over the phone?

A.80	No. The solicitation leaves it up to the applicant to propose what functions would be included for the call center. In terms of payment options, applicants are encouraged to maximize the ability of the chargers to accept multiple point-of-sale methods to minimize inconvenience to drivers. With everything else being equal, projects proposing more point-of-sale options may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Q.81	Would payment via an app or setup under a subscription model work?

A.81	Yes. Applicants are encouraged to maximize the ability of the chargers to accept multiple point-of-sale methods to minimize inconvenience to drivers. With everything else being equal, projects proposing more point-of-sale options may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Q.82	On page 16, the solicitation states, “The charging equipment must be capable of supporting multiple point-of-sale methods, such as pay per use and subscription methods, including ability to accept a credit or debit card without incurring any additional fees, inconvenience or delays versus other payment or access control methods.” Does the recipient have to have all options listed?

A.82	No. The solicitation requires chargers to have the ability to accept credit or debit cards without incurring any additional fees, inconvenience or delays versus other payment or access control methods. Applicants are encouraged to maximize the ability of the chargers to accept multiple point-of-sale methods to minimize inconvenience to drivers. Applicants must describe the point-of-sale methods that will be available at each site proposed. With everything else being equal, projects proposing more point-of-sale options may score higher in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

Q.83	Is it understood that Open Charge Point Protocol (OCPP) is considered an open standard? Are there any other standards that will meet this criterion for scoring purposes?

A.83	Yes. OCPP is considered one type of open standard for the purpose of this solicitation. For payment options, the point-of-sale and supporting network must use an open protocol to allow subscribers of other EV charging system networks to access the charging station. Also, any communication to or from the charging equipment must use an open communication protocol standard. It is the responsibility of the applicant to determine the standard to include in the narrative that will provide the scoring team at the Energy Commission sufficient information on which to base the technical score.

Signage

Q.84	Is there a requirement for regulatory signage to the site and at the charging parking spaces? 

A.84	Addendum #4 to the solicitation requires the Applicant to propose a plan for installing trailblazer signage that clearly identifies the route from the freeway to the station(s); signage that clearly identifies the charging site location to an approaching driver from any ingress; signage that identifies parking is for electric vehicles only; signage that states non-electrical vehicles may be towed; signage that informs drivers of price per unit of measure; signage required for ADA; and any additional signage that may be required by federal, state, or local laws, regulations, and ordinances. The planned signage will be evaluated in accordance with the scoring criteria. Signage that is demonstrated to facilitate charging sessions will also be evaluated in accordance with scoring criteria #8.

Miscellaneous

Q.85	Is there any possibility for a relationship between the Energy Commission, Caltrans, and Federal Government to allow rest stops to be used? 

A.85	The agencies have been discussing possibilities, however a resolution has not been reached.

Q.86	Regarding the good faith effort to license primary corridors with the West Coast Electric Highway, what type of proof would you like to see to show that good faith?

A.86	The Energy Commission expects that chargers along primary ECHC corridors will ultimately obtain a license and be branded with the West Coast Electric Highway. Applicants proposing projects in primary ECHC corridors should take all reasonable actions to secure the WCEH license. If unable to do so, applicants will need to document their efforts by providing copies of e-mails or other communications and provide a justification as to why the license could not be obtained.
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